(Registered number 11281979)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2020

RIDAY

A15

20/08/2021 COMPANIES HOUSE #87

(Registration Number 11281979) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Contents

	Page (s)
General Information	
Strategic Report	2 - 3
Directors' Report	4 - 6
Independent Auditor's Report	7 - 9
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income	10
Statement of Financial Position	н
Statement of Changes in Equity	112
Statement of Cash Flows	13
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements	14 - 19

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 1

General Information

Company Number

11281979

Country of Incorporation and United Kingdom

Domicile

Directors

Colin Arthur Benford (appointed on 15 January 2021)

Apex Corporate Services (UK) Limited

Apex Trust Corporate Limited

Carl Steven Baldry (resigned on 15 January 2021)

Registered Office

As from 5 July 2021

Up to 5 July 2021 6th Floor

Bastion House 6th Floor, 140 London Wall

125 Wood Street London

London EC2Y 5DN United Kingdom

EC2V 7AN United Kingdom

Company Secretary

Apex Trust Corporate Limited

As from 5 July 2021

Up to 5 July 2021 6th Floor

Bastion House 6th Floor, 140 London Wall

125 Wood Street London

London EC2Y 5DN United Kingdom

EC2V 7AN United Kingdom

Banker:

HSBC Bank plc, I Centenary Square Birmingham, B1

1HQ, United Kingdom

Solicitor

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer

LLP 65 Fleet Street London EC4Y 1HS United Kingdom

Corporate Service Provider

Apex Trust Corporate Limited

As from 5 July 2021 Bastion House

6th Floor, 140 London Wall London

London EC2Y 5DN United Kingdom Up to 5 July 2021

6th Floor 125 Wood Street London EC2V 7AN United Kingdom

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

7 More London Riverside

London United Kingdom SEI 2RT

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 2

Strategic Report

The directors (the "Directors") present the strategic report of Prodigy Repayments Limited (the "Company") for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Review of the business

The Company's operating income amounted to GBP 39,740 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: GBP 39,773). Profit before tax for the year amounted to GBP 2,000 (2019: GBP 1,930). The Company was in a net asset position at year end with cash and cash equivalents of GBP 496,564 (2019: GBP 1,637,552).

Financial instruments

The financial instruments used by the Company arise wholly and directly from its activities and comprise of its investments, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and trade receivables.

Financial risk management

The Company continues to maintain a rigorous risk management policy. The principal risks for the Company are dealt with in note 12 to the financial statements.

Brexit impact

The United Kingdom has formally withdrawn from membership of the European Union (the "EU") ("Brexit") and on 31 December 2020, the transition phase that was agreed in the UK-EU Withdrawal Agreement, in which the UK is no longer a member of the EU but continues to be subject to various EU rules and remains a member of the single market and customs union, has ended. The United Kingdom has adopted EU financial services legislation that was in effect on December 31, 2020, which means that the United Kingdom financial services regime will remain substantially the same as under EU financial services legislation. However, in the future, the United Kingdom may diverge from EU legislation and may decide not to adopt rules that correspond to EU legislation not already operative in the United Kingdom.

Following the end of the transition phase, the Board has performed an assessment of the impact of Brexit on the Company and its activities. Notwithstanding the uncertainty around the possible outcome for Brexit, the Board is of the view that the Company will not be significantly impacted as the Company collects and distributes payments on the portfolio of the Prodigy entities within the Group ("Prodigy Finance LTD"). The Company is not exposed to assets with demand risk and assets outside the UK and its business does not involve import, export and general trade or the employment of labour. The Board will continue to monitor developments as the process continues to unfold, and will reassess this analysis on an ongoing basis.

Covid-19 impact

The global spread of COVID-19 and associated containment measures resulted in unprecedented, sharp and sudden impacts on economic activity across a wide range of countries, including the United Kingdom. Whilst vaccination programmes are currently being deployed globally and underpin expectations around medium term recovery prospects, these vaccines may ultimately fail to achieve sufficient levels of general population immunity. Therefore, significant uncertainties remain as to how long the COVID-19 pandemic will last. However, due to the evolving nature of the Covid 19 pandemic, it is not possible at the date of issue of these financial statements to estimate its long term financial impact, if any, on the Company's activities. The board of directors (the "Board") continues to monitor the impact on the Company's activities.

Going concern

Having considered the Company's future cash flows and its business plans, including in particular the confirmed support of the Company by Prodigy Finance LTD, the Directors believe that the Company will have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they fall due and that it continues to be appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis of preparation. There is no intention to wind up the Company.

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 3

Strategic Report (continued)

Key performance indicators ("KPIs")

The Company's principal activity is to collect repayments made by student borrowers and distribute these to the Prodigy entities on behalf of Prodigy Finance LTD. The best benchmark is comparison against prior year financial figures.

The Directors confirm that the key performance indicators as disclosed below in the financial statements are those that are used to assess the performance of the Company.

During the year,

- the profit after taxation of the Company was GBP 1,620 (2019: GBP 1,563);
- the gross profit margin was 5% (2019: 5%); and
- the Company's other income was GBP 39,740 (2019: GBP 39,773).

As at 31 December 2020,

- the Company's riet asset position was GBP 3,557 (2019: GBP 1,937); and
- the Company had cash and cash equivalents of GBP 496,564 (2019: GBP 1,637,552).

The Company did not have any employees during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: None).

On behalf of the Board

Colin Benford

Apex Corporate Services (UK) Limited

Director

Date: 18 August 2021

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 4

Directors' Report

The Directors present their Annual Report and Audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

1 Principal activities and business review

The Company was incorporated under the Companies Acts 2006 in England and Wales on 28 March 2018 as a private company limited by shares whose principal activity is to collect repayments made by student borrowers and distribute these to the Prodigy entities on behalf of Prodigy Finance LTD. The Company expects to maintain its current business activities in the coming financial year.

2 Going concern

Having considered the Company's future cash flows and its business plans, including in particular the confirmed support of the Company by Prodigy Finance LTD, the Directors believe that the Company will have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they fall due and that it continues to be appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis of preparation. There is no intention to wind up the Company.

3 Results and dividends for the financial year

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and the Statement of Financial Position at that date are set out in pages 10 and 11. The result for the year was a profit after tax of GBP 1,620 (2019: GBP 1,563).

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2019: GBP Nil).

4 Directors and secretary

The Directors and secretary of the Company are as outlined on page 1.

Carl Steven Baldry resigned as Director on 15 January 2021 and Colin Arthur Benford was appointed as Director of the Company on the same date.

5 Directors, secretary and their interests

The Directors and secretary who held office on 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 had no interests in the share capital of the Company during the financial year.

6 Accounting records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper books and accounting records, as outlined in Section 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2006, are kept by the Company. To achieve this, the Directors have appointed Apex Trust Corporate Limited to provide accounting services, who report to the Board and ensure that the requirements of Section 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2006, are complied with. The accounting records of the Company are maintained at Bastion House, 6th Floor, 140 London Wall, London, EC2Y 5DN, United Kingdom.

7 Political donations

No political donations were made by the Company during the current financial year (2019: GBP Nil).

8 Subsequent events

There were no events subsequent to the date of the annual financial statements for which the applicable financial reporting framework require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements and this is disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Directors' Report (continued)

9 Covid 19 impact

The global spread of COVID-19 and associated containment measures resulted in unprecedented, sharp and sudden impacts on economic activity across a wide range of countries, including the United Kingdom. Whilst vaccination programmes are currently being deployed globally and underpin expectations around medium term recovery prospects, these vaccines may ultimately fail to achieve sufficient levels of general population immunity. Therefore, significant uncertainties remain as to how long the COVID-19 pandemic will last. During the year, the pandemic did not have significant impact on the Company. However, due to the evolving nature of the Covid 19 pandemic, it is not possible at the date of issue of these financial statements to estimate its long term financial impact, if any, on the Company's activities. The Board continues to monitor the impact on the Company's activities.

10 Independent auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were the independent auditor for the year under review.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were re-appointed as the independent auditor for the Company for the year under review and will continue in office as auditors of the Company pursuant to section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006 and paragraph 44 of Schedule to the Companies Act 2006 (Commencement No. 3 Consequential Amendment, Transitional Provisions and Savings) Order 2007.

Directors' declaration on audited financial statements

In relation to the financial statements as set out on pages 10 to 19.

- the Directors approve these financial statements and confirm that they are responsible for them, including selecting
 the appropriate accounting policies, applying them consistently and making, on a reasonable and prudent basis, the
 judgements underlying them. They have been prepared on the going concern basis on the grounds that the Company
 will continue in business.
- the Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the accounting records reflect all of the transactions of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

11 Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Under Company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that year. In preparing theses financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- · make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies
 Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
 and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

Page 5

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 6

Directors' Report (continued)

11 Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and the financial statements (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors' confirmations

In the case of each Director in office at the date the directors' report is approved:

- so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are unaware;
- they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the Board

/ Colin Benford

Apex Corporate Services (UK) Limited

Director

Date: 18 August 2021

Independent auditors' report to the members of Prodigy Repayments Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Prodigy Repayments Limited's financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020; the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the yearthen ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concembasis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and the financial statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to breaches of industry laws and regulations, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to manual elements of the control environment, specifically the posting of in appropriate journal entries. Aud it procedures performed by the engagement team included:

- Obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the company and how the company is complies with that framework;
- Held discussions with management and those charged with governance including making specific inquiries about any
 consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;
- Reviewed minutes of meetings of those charged with governance along with key transaction documents; and
- Tested a sample of manual journal entries and other adjustments impacting the company's accounting records.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to youif, in our opinion:

- we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received frombranches not visited by us; or
- certain disclosures of directors' remunerations pecified by law are not made; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Christopher Dalton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Edinburgh

18 August 2021

Christiph J Dallar

(Registration Number 11281979) Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 10

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

	Notes	31-Dec-20 GBP	31-Dec-19 GBP
Income			
Other income	4	39,740	39,773
Expenses		39,740	39,773
Administrative expenses	5	(37,740)	(37,843)
Operating profit		2,000	1,930
Profit before income tax		2,000	1,930
Taxation	7	(380)	(367)
Profit for the year		1,620	1,563
Total comprehensive income for the year		1,620	1,563

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 11

Statement of Financial Position

	Notes	31-Dec-20 GBP	31-Dec-19 GBP
Assets			42 -
Current assets	•		
Trade and other receivables	8	35,250	37,078
Cash and cash equivalents	9	496,564	1,637,552
Total assets		531,814	1,674,630
Liabilities and equity		, 	
Liabilities			
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	12	528,257	1,672,693
Total liabilities		528,257	1,672,693
Equity			
Issued capital	10	1	1
Retained earnings	11	3,556	1,936
Total equity		3,557	1,937
Total liabilities and equity		531,814	1,674,630

On behalf of the Board

Colin Benford

Apex Corporate Services (UK) Limited Director

Date: 18 August 2021

(Registration Number 11281979)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity

Page 12

Balance as at 1 January 2019	Share capital GBP 1	Retained earnings GBP 373	Total equity GBP 374
Total comprehensive income for the year Profit for the year	-	1,563	1,563
Total comprehensive income for the year		1,563	1,563
Balance as at 31 December 2019	1	1,936	1,937
Balance as at 1 January 2020	1	1,936	1,937
Total comprehensive income for the year Profit for the year	-	1,620	1,620
Total comprehensive income for the year	<u> </u>	1,620	1,620
Balance as at 31 December 2020	1	3,556	3,557

(Registration Number 11281979)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 13

Statement of Cash Flows

		31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19
Ņ	otes	GBP	GBP
Cash llows from operating activities			
Profit before taxation		2,000	1,930
Movements in working capital			
Decrease in trade and other receivables		1,828	5,804
Decrease in trade and other payables		(1,144,816)	(287,281)
Net cash used in operating activities		(1,140,988)	(279,547)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(1,140,988)	(279,547)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year		1,637,552	1,917,099
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	9	496,564	1,637,552

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 14

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

1 General information

The Company is a single member private company limited by shares. The Company was incorporated on 28 March 2018. The address of the Company's registered office is Bastlon House, 6th Floor, 140 London Wall, London, EC2Y 5DN, United Kingdom.

The principal activity of the Company is to collect repayments made by student borrowers and distribute payments on the portfolio of the Prodigy entities within the Group on behalf of Prodigy Finance LTD.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 (except as otherwise stated).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The Company continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in British Pound ("GBP"), which is the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

(b) Estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that year or in the year of the revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

During the year, the Directors did not make any judgements and estimates.

(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations

There are no new and amended IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 that would be expected to have a material impact on the Company.

3 Significant accounting policies

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated to the Company's functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign currency differences on these are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

(b) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from retained earnings, net of any tax effects.

(c) Income tax expenses

Income tax expense is recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous year.

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 15

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies

(d) Going concern

Having considered the Company's future cash flows and its business plans, including in particular the confirmed support of the Company by Prodigy Finance LTD, the Directors believe that the Company will have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they fall due and that it continues to be appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis of preparation. There is no intention to wind up the Company.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank comprise only of bank balances.

(f) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are classified as financial assets and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(g) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are classified as other financial liabilities and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

4 Other income

•	31-Dec-20 GBP	31-Dec-19 GBP
Other income	37,740	37,773
Account holder fee	2,000	2,000
	39,740	39,773

Other income includes income receivable from Prodigy Finance LTD to pay for the expenses.

5 Administrative expenses

	31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19
	GBP	GBP
Accounting and administration fees	· 17,544	10,872
Tax advisory fee	3,250	8,050
Directors' remuneration	7,260	7,200
Audit fees	3,851	3,851
Company secretarial fees	3,631	3,600
Trustee fees	1,212	1,200
Other expenses	900	3,000
Bank charges	92	70
	37,740	37,843

6 Staff numbers and costs

The Company had no employees during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: none).

Apex Trust Corporate Limited acts as secretary and as corporate services provider to the Company in accordance with the terms of the service agreements made with the Company.

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 16

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

7 Taxation

	Reconciliation	31-Dec-20 GBP	31-Dec-19 GBP
	Profit before taxation	2,000	1,930
	Profit before taxation for the reporting year multiplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2019: 19%)	380	367
	Total tax charge for the year	380	367
·8	Trade and other receivables		
	•	31-Dec-20 GBP	31-Dec-19 GBP
	Account holder fees receivable	4,000	2,460
	Fees prepaid	22,696	22,715
	Share capital receivable	1	1
	Other income receivable	552	-
	Income receivable from Prodigy Finance LTD for below fees:		
	Audit fees	3,851	3,851
	Tax advisory Fee	4,150	8,051
		35,250	37,078
9	Cash and cash equivalents		
		31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19
		GBP	GBP
	Bank balances	496,564	1,637,552
10	Issued capital		
	•	31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19
		GBP	GBP
	Authorised:		_
	1 Ordinary shares of £1 each	1	1
	Issued and called-up	GBP	GBP
	1 Ordinary shares of £1 each	1	1

Apex Trust Nominees No. 1 Limited held the entire share capital of the Company at 31 December 2020. The board of Directors have considered the issue as to who is the controlling party of the Company. It was determined that the day to day activities of the Company rests with the Board.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time. No dividends were paid during the year or proposed by the Directors at the reporting date (2019: GBP nil).

11 Retained earnings

	31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19	
	GBP	GBP	
Reserves at the beginning of the year	1,936	373	
Profit for the year	1,620	1,563	
Reserves at the end of the year	3,556	1,936	

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 17

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

12 Trade and other payables

	31-Dec-20	31-Dec-19
	GBP	GBP
Payable to related parties	496,727	1,637,622
Payable to Prodigy Finance LTD for prepaid fees	22,696	22,715
Accruals	8,000	11,902
Corporation tax payable	834	454
•	528,257	1,672,693

13 Reserves

Retained earnings include all current year and prior years' retained profits and losses.

14 Financial risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks as a result of its activities as described below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from cash holdings.

The policy of the Company in relation to credit risk is to expose itself to the credit risk in relation to the financial assets only. The Board considers the risk to be of an acceptable nature.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with its financial instruments. Liquidity risk may also result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at its fair value. The objective of liquidity management is to ensure that the company has sufficient funds to meet contractual and financial obligations when they fall due.

To manage liquidity risk, the company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of each and each equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Company's operation. Wherever possible, the Company matches the properties of its financial liabilities to its assets to avoid significant elements of risk generated by mismatches of investment performance against its obligations.

The Company has maintained sufficient funds to finance its ongoing working capital requirements. When necessary the company is able to seek further funding from external investors.

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates will affect the Company's income and operations. Given that the Company receives funding from Prodigy Finance LTD, the above risks are very minimal.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises where assets and liabilities have interest rates under a different basis or which reset at a different time. Given that the Company has no trading activities and has only a cash balance, the above risks are very minimal.

(Registration Number 11281979)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 18

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

14 Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Market risk (continued) Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk because the functional currency differs from the currency in which other expenses are incurred and the currency in which its cash at bank is held. This risk however is very minimal as all income received are matched to the expenses paid out.

15 Related party transactions

During the year, the Company had the following transactions and balances with the related parties:

			Transactions (charged to)/received from the related party during the year			ts receivable by ne related party at year-end
Name	Relationship	Transactions	2020	2019	2020	2019
			GBP	GBP	GBP	GBP
Apex Trust Corporate	Company	Corporate				
Limited	Secretary	services	(17,544)	(10,872)	13,432	13,443
Prodigy Finance LTD	Provides	Net income to	39,740	39,773	(14,143)	(10,813)
	income to	cover fees				
	Company					
Prodigy Finance CM-	Repayment	Collect	-	-	(154,392)	(780,345)
2017-1 DAC	account holder	payments for				
<u>.</u> .		student loans				
Prodigy Finance CM-	Repayment	Collect	-	-	(131,785)	(168,872)
2018-1 DAC	account holder	payments for				
		student loans				
Prodigy Finance CM-	Repayment	Collect	-	-	-	(112,257)
2018-2 DAC	account holder	payments for				
		student loans				
Prodigy Finance CM-	Repayment	Collect	-	-	(1,419)	-
2020-1 DAC	account holder	payments for				
		student loans				
MBA Community	Repayment	Collect	-	-	(128,198)	(327,644)
Loans PLC	account holder	payments for				
		student loans				
Items in transit*	Repayment	Repayment	-	-	(80,933)	(248,434)
	account holder	account holder				
			-	-	(496,727)	(1,637,552)

^{*}This balance is swept to the appropriate related party as part of the clearing process.

Amounts outstanding between related parties are unsecured and payable on demand. Related party transactions were made on equivalent terms to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

During the year, the Company received an income amount to GBP 37,740 (2019: GBP 37,773) from Prodigy Finance LTD to cover for expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, fees of GBP 17,544 were paid to the Administrator in respect of administration fees and an amount of GBP 13,432 was prepaid at year end.

(Registration Number 11281979)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020

Page 19

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements (continued)

16 Commitments and contingencies

At 31 December 2020, the Company had no commitments or contingencies (2019: GBP nil).

17 Subsequent events

There were no events after the reporting financial year, which would require revision of the figures or disclosure in the financial statements.

18 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors on 18 August 2021.